
Regular and Special Meeting of the Board of Directors, May 23, 2024 
Page 1  

REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

911 SUNSET DRIVE, HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA 
THURSDAY, MAY 23, 2024 – 5:00 P.M. 

SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2nd-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM 
TELECONFERENCE LOCATION:1 

San Jose State University 
Student Union (Diaz Copean) 

One Washington Sq 
San Jose, California 95192 

IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE 
Members of the public may participate remotely via zoom at the following link https://zoom.us/join with the 

following Webinar ID and Password: 

Meeting ID 963 9844 0069 
Security Passcode: 227337 

Mission Statement - The San Benito Health Care District is a public agency that serves as a responsive, 
comprehensive health care resource for its patients, physicians, and the health care consumers of the 
community. 
Vision Statement - San Benito Health Care District is committed to meeting community health care needs 
with quality care in a safe and compassionate environment. 

AGENDA 
Presented By: 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call (Hernandez) 

2. Board Announcements (Hernandez) 

  3. Public Comment          (Hernandez) 
This opportunity is provided for members of the public to make a brief statement, not to exceed three (3) minutes, on 
matters within the jurisdiction of this District Board, which are not otherwise covered under an item on this agenda. This 
is the appropriate place to comment on items on the Consent Agenda. Board Members may not deliberate or take action 
on an item not on the duly posted agenda. Written comments for the Board should be provided to the Board clerk for the 
official record. Whenever possible, written correspondence should be submitted to the Board in advance of the meeting to 
provide adequate time for its consideration. Speaker cards are available. 

4. Continued Item from May 20, 2024 – Provide Direction to Staff Regarding Further Negotiations

1 Note: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(b), this meeting will include teleconference participation by 
Director Pack from the address above. This Notice and Agenda will be posted at the teleconference location. 

https://zoom.us/join


Regular and Special Meeting of the Board of Directors, May 23, 2024 
Page 2  

With a Potential Transaction Partner. 

► Report
► Board Questions
► Public Comment
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

5. Consent Agenda – General Business (Hernandez) 
The Consent Agenda deals with routine and non-controversial matters. The vote
on the Consent Agenda shall apply to each item that has not been removed. A
Board Member may pull an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion. One
motion shall be made to adopt all non-removed items on the Consent Agenda.

A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors  – April 25, 2024

B. Consider and Approve Policies:
• Fall Prevention
• Student Shadowing
• Student Clinical Rotation

C. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.

• Provider Services & Clinic Operations
• Skilled Nursing Facilities Reports (Mabie Southside/Northside)
• Laboratory and Radiology
• Foundation Report
• Marketing Report
• PMO Project Summary Report

Recommended Action: Approval of Consent Agenda Items (A) through (C). 

► Report
► Board Questions
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

6. Medical Executive Committee (Dr. Bogey) 

A. Consider and Approve Medical Staff Credentials: May 15, 2024
Recommended Action: Approval of Credentials

► Report
► Board Questions
► Public Comment
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

B. Consider and Approve Privileges (New): Clinic Psychologist
Recommended Action: Approval of New Privileges:  Clinic Psychologist

(Pages 1-30)

(Pages  31-34)



Regular and Special Meeting of the Board of Directors, May 23, 2024 
Page 3  

► Report
► Board Questions
► Public Comment
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

7. Receive Informational Reports

A. Transaction Update (Peil/B.Riley) 

► Public Comment

B. Chief Executive Officer (Casillas)

► Public Comment

C. Chief Nursing Officer     (Descent) 

► Public Comment

D. Finance Committee (Robinson) 

1. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – May 16, 2024

2. Review Financial Updates
• Financial Statements – April  2024
• Finance Dashboard – April 2024

► Public Comment

8. Action Item

A. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2024-01 Ratifying Submission of the Loan
Application and Authorizing Execution of a Loan and Security Agreement, and Certain
Actions in Connection with the Distressed Hospital Loan Program (“DHLP”)

 (Robinson) 

Recommended Action: Approval of DHLP-CHFFA Resolution # 2024-01 
► Report
► Board Questions
► Public Comment
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

B. Consider Recommendation for Implementation of Analyzer Project Phase I and II; and Approval of
Agreements for Test Analyzers; Services Agreement; and Architectural Services.

 (Robinson)

Recommended Action: Approval of Laboratory Chemistry Analyzer Project and Agreements for Test 
Analyzer; Services Agreement; and Architectural Services. 
► Report

(Pages 35-55)

(Pages 35-36)

(Page 37)

(Pages 38-55)

(Pages 56-58)

(Pages 56-83)

(Pages 59-83)



Regular and Special Meeting of the Board of Directors, May 23, 2024 
Page 4  

► Board Questions
► Public Comment
► Motion/Second
► Action/Board Vote-Roll Call

9. Public Comment
This opportunity is provided for members to comment on the closed
(Hernandez)
session topics, not to exceed three (3) minutes.

10. Closed Session (Hernandez) 
(See Attached Closed Session Sheet Information)

11. Reconvene Open Session / Closed Session Report (Hernandez) 

12. Adjournment (Hernandez) 

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday,
June 27, 2024 at 5:00 p.m., Great Room.

The complete Board packet including subsequently distributed materials and 
presentations is available at the Board Meeting, in the Administrative Offices of the 
District, and posted on the District’s website at 
https://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/. All items 
appearing on the agenda are subject to action by the Board. Staff and Committee 
recommendations are subject to change by the Board. 

Any public record distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to this meeting in connection with 
any agenda item shall be made available for public inspection at the District office. Public records 
distributed during the meeting, if prepared by the District, will be available for public inspection at the 
meeting. If the public record is prepared by a third party and distributed at the meeting, it will be made 
available for public inspection following the meeting at the District office. 

Notes: Requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to attend or participate in a meeting should be made to District Administration during regular 
business hours at 831-636-2673. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the 
District to make reasonable accommodations. 

http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/
http://www.hazelhawkins.com/news/categories/meeting-agendas/


Page 1 of 2 

SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MAY 23, 2024 

AGENDA FOR CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.2 and 54954.5, the board agenda may describe closed session agenda 
items as provided below. No legislative body or elected official shall be in violation of Section 54954.2 or 54956 if the closed 
session items are described in substantial compliance with Section 54954.5 of the Government Code. 

CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 

[  ] LICENSE/PERMIT DETERMINATION 
(Government Code §54956.7) 

Applicant(s): (Specify number of applicants) 

[  ] CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
(Government Code §54956.8) 

[ X ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code §54956.9(d)(1)) 

Name of case: (Specify by reference to claimant's name, names of parties, case or claim numbers): 
San Benito Health Care District dba Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital, Case No. 23-50544 (United States 
Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of California, San Jose Division) 

Case name unspecified: (Specify whether disclosure would jeopardize service of process or existing settlement 
negotiations): 

[ X  ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
(Government Code §54956.9) 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(2) or (3) 1 

Additional information required pursuant to Section 54956.9(e):Wise v. SBHCD 

Initiation of litigation pursuant to Section 54956.9(d)(4) (Number of potential cases): 

[  ] LIABILITY CLAIMS 
(Government Code §54956.95) 

Claimant: (Specify name unless unspecified pursuant to Section 54961): 
Agency claimed against: (Specify name): . 

[  ] THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES 
(Government Code §54957) 

Consultation with: (Specify the name of law enforcement agency and title of officer): 

[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 
(Government Code §54957) 

Title:  



Page 2 of 2 

[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 
(Government Code §54957) 

Title: 

[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
(Government Code §54957) 

Title: (Specify position title of the employee being reviewed): 

[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
(Government Code §54957) 

(No additional information is required in connection with a closed session to consider discipline, dismissal, or 
release of a public employee. Discipline includes potential reduction of compensation.) 

[X] CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
(Government Code §54957.6)

Agency designated representative:  Drew Tartala
Employee organization:  National Union of Healthcare Workers (NUHW)
Unrepresented employee:

[  ] CASE REVIEW/PLANNING 
(Government Code §54957.8) 

(No additional information is required to consider case review or planning.) 

[  ] REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET 
(Government Code §37606 & Health and Safety Code § 32106) 

Discussion will concern: (Specify whether discussion will concern proposed new service, program, or facility): 

1. Trade Secrets, Strategic Planning, Proposed New Programs, and Services.

Estimated date of public disclosure: (Specify month and year): 

[  ] HEARINGS/REPORTS 
(Government Code §37624.3 & Health and Safety Code §§1461, 32155) 

Subject matter: (Specify whether testimony/deliberation will concern staff privileges, report of medical audit 
committee, or report of quality assurance committee): 

[  ] CHARGE OR COMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED 
BY FEDERAL LAW (Government Code §54956.86) 

(No additional information is required to discuss a charge or complaint pursuant to Section 54956.86.) 

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

SUPPORT SERVICES BUILDING, 2ND-FLOOR, GREAT ROOM 
IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE 

THURSDAY, ARPIL 25, 2024 
5:00 P.M. 

MINUTES 

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 

Directors Present 
Devon Pack, Board Member 
Rick Shelton, Board Member 
Bill Johnson, Board Member 

Absent 
Jeri Hernandez, Board Member 
Josie Sanchez, Board Member 

Also Present 
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer 
Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 

Andie Posey, Nurse Executive Consultant 
Amy Breen-Lema, VP, Clinic Ambulatory & Physician Services 

Michael Bogey, MD, Chief of Staff 
Heidi A. Quinn, District Legal Counsel 

Chela Brewer, Executive Assistant  

1. Call to Order

Attendance was taken by roll call; Directors Johnson, Shelton, and Pack were present.

A quorum was present and Director Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2. Board Announcements:  Director Johnson announced Action Item 7 would be pulled from the agenda for
consideration at a future date.

3. Public Comment
An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address the
Board Members and Administration.

4. Consent Agenda - General Business

1



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 25, 2024 

A. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors – March 21, 2024

B. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Directors  – March 25, 2024

C. Consider and Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors – March 28,
2024

D. Consider and Approve Policies:
• Universal Bilirubin Screening for Newborns at 35 Weeks or More of Gestation
• Identification and Reporting of Suspected Victims of Abuse and Domestic Violence
• Blanket-Solution Warmer

E. Receive Officer/Director Written Reports - No action required.

• Provider Services & Clinic Operations
• Skilled Nursing Facilities Reports (Mabie Southside/Northside)
• Laboratory and Radiology
• Foundation Report
• Facilities Report
• PMO Project Summary Report

Director Johnson presented the consent agenda items to the Board for action.  This information is included 
in the Board packet. 

MOTION:  By Director Pack to approve Consent Agenda – General Business, Items A –E, Second by 
Director Shelton.   

Moved/Seconded/Unanimously Carried. Ayes: Directors Johnson, Shelton, and Pack.  Approved 3-0 by 
roll call.  Hernandez and Sanchez absent. 

5. Report from the Medical Executive Committee Meeting on April 24,  2024 and Recommendations
for Board Approval of the following:

A. Consider and Approve Medical Staff Credentials Reports:

Dr. Bogey, Chief of Staff, provided a review of the Medical Executive Committee Credentials report
dated April 24, 2024.

Items:  Proposed Approval of the Medical Executive Committee Credentials report for ten (10) New
Appointments, two (2) Reappointments, and thirteen (13) Resignation/Retirement.

Items: Proposed Approval of the Interdisciplinary Committee Credentials Report for two (2) New
Appointments, and one (1) granted additional privilages.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address
the Board Members and Administration.

MOTION: By Director Shelton to approve the Credentials Reports as presented; Second by Director
Pack. 

2



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 25, 2024 

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors  Johnson, Shelton, and Pack.  
Approved 3-0 by roll call. Hernandez and Sanchez absent. 

B. Consider and Approve Revised OPPE Policy

Dr. Bogey provided a review of the Revised Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (“OPPE”)
Policy.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to
address the Board Members and Administration.

MOTION: By Director Pack to approve the OPPE Policy as presented; Second by Director Shelton.

Moved/Seconded/and Unanimously Carried: Ayes: Directors Johnson, Shelton, and Pack.
Approved 3-0 by roll call.  Hernandez and Sanchez absent.

6. Receive Informational Reports

A. Board Education –Merger, Affiliation and Partnership; Risks and Benefits

Jeff Sommer, Managing Director with Stroudwater Associates, presented Revitalizing Rural
Healthcare: The Powers and Potential of Partnership.

A PowerPoint Presentation was provided to the Board and public.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes.

B. Transaction Update

The District’s consultant, Richard Peil of B.Riley, provided an update regarding the District’s potential
transaction partners: County of San Benito, Insight, AAM, and SBHCA.  The original deadline for
submittals was extended from April 22, 2024 to April 29, 2024.  SBHCA issued a letter withdrawing
its proposal.  HCA issued its final valuation report.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes.

C. Chief Executive Officer

Mary Casillas provided highlights of the Chief Executive Officer Report, which is included in the Board
packet.

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to
address the Board Members and Administration.

D. Nurse Executive Consultant

Andie Posey announced today is her last day with the District, and provided highlights of the Nurse
Executive Consultant Report, which is included in the Board packet.

3



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, April 25, 2024 

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to 
address the Board Members and Administration. 

E. Finance Committee

1. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – April 18, 2024

2. Review Financial Updates

• Financial Statements – March 2024
• Finance Dashboard – March 2024

Mark Robinson provided a review of the financial statements and dashboard included in the Board 
packet.  

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address 
the Board Members and Administration. 

7. Action Items

A. Consider Recommendation for Board Approval of Telemetry Services (Robinson) Agreement with
Hicuity Health, Inc. for Three Years – deferred.

8. Public Comment

An opportunity was provided for public comment and individuals were given three minutes to address the
Board Members and Administration.

9. Closed Session

Vice President Johnson announced one item to be discussed in Closed Session as listed on the posted 
Agenda:  Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation, Government Code §54956.9(d)(1). The 
meeting was recessed into Closed Session at 6:45 p.m. 

The Board completed its business of the Closed Session at 7:18 p.m. 

10. Reconvene Open Session/Closed Session Report

The Board of Directors reconvened into Open Session at 7:18 p.m. District Counsel Heidi Quinn reported
that in Closed Session, the Board discussed one item: Conference with Counsel – Existing Litigation. There
was no reportable action taken by the Board in Closed Session.

11. Adjournment:

There being no further regular business or actions, the meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m.

The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Thursday, May 23, 2024 at 5:00 p.m.

4



Fall Prevention

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 5/15/2024 and will be made available in the Lucidoc application
until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject
to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-
dateness", or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended solely for the addressee. The
information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust, for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended
recipient. If you have received this transmission in error, any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Revision Insight

Document ID: 10396
Revision Number: 3
Owner: Shanell Kerkes,
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
Updated from PDF to HTML format. Policy reviewed and updated.

Page 1

5



DocID: 10396
Revision: 3
Status: In preparation
Department: Administration - Multidisciplinary
Manual(s):

Policy : Fall Prevention

PURPOSE

Our purpose is to establish and implement effective measures aimed at preventing falls within our organization. Through comprehensive risk assessment,
education, and intervention strategies, we are committed to creating a safe environment that minimizes the risk of falls and promotes the well-being of our
employees/residents/patients.

DEFINITIONS

A patient fall is a sudden, unintentional descent, with or without sustained injury, that results in the patient coming to rest on the floor, on or against some
other surface, on another person, or on an object. This includes all unassisted and assisted falls regardless of the patient’s age or admission status (National
Database of Nursing Quality Indicators [NDNQI], 2020).

All falls by visitors, students, or staff members are excluded from the above. Following existing Facility policy in order to address falls by visitors, students, or
staff members.

POLICY AND PROCEDURE STATEMENTS

1. All patients will be evaluated for fall potential through completion of the appropriate Falls Risk Assessment. This will occur during the admission
assessment process; initial, daily nursing assessment; at minimum of once per shift; following a change in medical condition and/or level of care; and
post fall.

2. Based on the level of fall risk, nursing interventions will be initiated and will be captured on the patient’s plan of care.

3. Regardless of risk stratification, standard of care fall prevention elements will be implemented on all patients.

ASSESSMENT

1. Each adult patient within an inpatient unit will be assessed for fall using the Morse Fall Risk Assessment tool which appraises the following elements:
a. History of falls (immediate or previous [last three months]);

b. Secondary diagnosis

c. Ambulatory aid;

d. IV/Heparin lock;

e. Gait/Transferring; and

f. Mental Status.

2. Each pediatric inpatient, will be assessed for fall risk using The Humpty Dumpty Fall scale.

3. Reassessment of fall risk will occur, at minimum, once per shift; following a change in medical condition and/or level of care; and post fall.

STANDARD OF CARE

1. Regardless of risk score or level of stratification, the following will be in place for all patients across HHH:
a. Care Process

i. Hourly Safety Rounding

ii. Bedside Shift report that includes communication of fall risk and active interventions

iii. Communication of fall risk and active interventions during all handoff reports to other departments and disciplines.

b. Physical Environment
i. Ensure adequate lighting and a clear path to the bathroom,

ii. Ensure the patient’s call device and all necessary personal belongings are within reach

iii. Place bed in low position, secure wheel locks, and position two side-rails up within patient consent. Keep wheelchair wheel locks in
‘locked’ position when stationary

iv. Provide patient with non-skid footwear or utilize patient’s own footwear provided it is well-fitting and slip resistant

v. Minimize room clutter and keep floor surfaces clean and dry

vi. Identify patients at moderate or high risk of fall with appropriate fall risk signage including, but not limited to, laminated signs, yellow
wristband, yellow socks, etc.

c. Patient/Visitor Education
i. Familiarize patient with environment

ii. Discuss home safety measures with patient or visitors and review precaution details routinely with patient and visitors.

iii. Educate patient on the use of call device ensuring appropriate return demonstration

iv. Consider patient’s learning needs when providing education

Document ID 10396 Revision   3 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 2

6



2. For high fall risk patients: implement the following interventions in addition to the additional standard interventions above.
a. Identify patients at moderate or high risk of fall with appropriate fall risk signage including, but not limited to, laminated signs, yellow wristband,

yellow socks, etc.

b. Use bed/chair alarms

c. Discuss prevention strategies with patient/family/care givers/visitors.

d. Find out if the patient is able to use call light system.

e. Remind patients to call for help when getting up or toileting

f. Use incontinence products that don’t affect patient’s mobility.

g. Assign a room and type of bed that allows safe transfer, ambulation, and monitoring.

h. DO NOT leave patient unattended in bathroom, or when out of bed.

DOCUMENTATION

1. Each patient will have Morse fall scale score, or The Humpty Dumpty Fall scale and risk level documented within the Electronic Health Record (EHR) at
the time intervals noted on page 1.

a. The overall score and corresponding risk level will be auto-calculated based in the individually documented elements.

2. Following the calculation of a fall score and risk level, the nurse will document all active, applicable interventions pursuant to the individual needs of each
patient.

3. Every patient should have fall prevention measures listed as a part of their individualized plan of care.

POST-FALL PROCESS

1. Injury Assessment
a. Prior to being moved, the patient will be immediately assessed for obvious injuries and to determine level of severity. Assessment will include:

vital signs, neurological, musculoskeletal, circulatory, integumentary, psychological status, and pain.

b. A fall debriefing huddle will occur on the same shift as the fall to gather all pertinent data. A Nursing Leadership representative will be present
during the debriefing for coaching and guidance.

2. Notifications of the fall
a. At a minimum, the Attending Physician, Nursing Leader, and patient’s legal representative will be notified as soon as possible.

b. All notifications will be documented in the EHR.

3. Reporting
a. For each patient fall, the nurse will document in the Post Fall Assessment intervention within the EHR.

b. All falls will be reported in the facility’s event reporting system.

c. Serious Safety Event reporting will be completed for all falls resulting in fracture(s) or brain bleed(s).

REFERENCE/LINKS

1. National Database of Nursing Quality Indicators. (2020). Guidelines for data collection and submission on patient falls indicator. Press Ganey.
https://members.nursingquality.org/NDNQIPortal/Documents/General/Guidelines%20-%20PatientFalls.pdf?
linkid=s0_f776_m73_m230_a0_m236_a0_m242_a0#:%7E:text=Fall%20A%20patient%20fall%20is,e.g.%2C%20a%20trash%20can

Document ID 10396 Revision   3 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 3

77



ATTACHMENTS

A. Morse Fall Risk Assessment

Document ID 10396 Revision   3 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 4

88



B. Humpty Dumpty Fall Risk Assessment

Document ID 10396 Revision   3 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 5

99



Document ID 10396 Document Status In preparation
Department Administration - Multidisciplinary Department Director Fernandez, Jacqueline

Document Owner Kerkes, Shanell Next Review Date
Original Effective Date 05/03/2021

Revised [05/01/2001], [07/01/2011], [05/04/2021 Rev. 0], [05/26/2021 Rev. 1], [05/27/2021 Rev. 2]
Reviewed [05/01/2007], [08/01/2009], [12/01/2012], [12/01/2014], [06/01/2018], [11/01/2019]
Keywords rounding, humpty dumpty, slip, wristband, sock, morse

Attachments: 
(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)

Other Documents: 
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in Lucidoc at

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:10396$3.

Document ID 10396 Revision   3 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 6

1010

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:10396$3


Student Shadowing

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 5/15/2024 and will be made available in the Lucidoc application
until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject
to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-
dateness", or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended solely for the addressee. The
information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust, for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended
recipient. If you have received this transmission in error, any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12082
Revision Number: 0
Owner: Brittney Slibsager, Director
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
New Policy.

Page 1

1111



DocID: 12082
Revision: 0
Status: In preparation
Department: Medical Staff Services
Manual(s):

Policy : Student Shadowing

PURPOSE

This policy outlines the guidelines and expectations for accepting and accommodating shadowing students within the San Benito Health Care District
(SBHCD) facilities including all hospital departments, physical therapy and the community clinics.

DEFINITIONS

Shadowing student:  An individual who is observing and learning from healthcare professionals within the facility without direct involvement in patient
care.

Preceptor:  A qualified healthcare professional responsible for supervising and guiding the shadowing student.

PROCEDURE

Shadowing opportunities are open to medical, nursing, and allied health students from accredited educational schools that have an agreement with Hazel
Hawkins Memorial Hospital. 

Interested students must submit a formal application.

Application will be reviewed by Human Resources to determine if the student has ever been employed by SBHCD, had any personnel actions or
termination.  If the student is an employee or volunteer, they must be in good standing with SBHCD.

If it is established that the student has undergone human resources-related actions or termination, the department director/manager will engage in a
discussion to assess the student's eligibility to participate in the student rotation.

Applications will be reviewed by the appropriate department director/manager, and approved or denied based on the availability of preceptors, patient
privacy considerations, and compliance with facility policies.

Accepted shadowing students must complete all required employee health requirements within the year of the rotation and attend an orientation session
with Human Resources to review facility policies, procedures and expectations before being cleared to shadow.

Shadowing students will be assigned a preceptor who will provide guidance and ensure compliance with all facility policies.

Preceptors must have the appropriate qualification and experience to supervise shadowing students effectively.

Preceptor will not allow student to participate in direct patient care, perform invasive procedures, or make independent medical decisions.

Students must adhere to the Hazel Hawkins Memorial Hospital dress code and wear appropriate attire, including student identification badges.

The sponsoring provider, staff and student understand that SBHCD has the right to end the rotation at any point for violating SBHCD policy and
procedures.

The student acknowledges participation in appropriate training and information from the sponsoring physician or school relating to this risk and is capable
of making an informed decision. The student elects to assume this risk and agrees to take recommended precautions.

The duration of shadowing experiences will be determined on a case-by-case basis, with consideration given to departmental needs and student
availability. Students should adhere to agreed-upon schedule and be punctual.

Document ID 12082 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 2

1212



Document ID 12082 Document Status In preparation
Department Medical Staff Services Department Director Slibsager, Brittney

Document Owner Slibsager, Brittney Next Review Date
Attachments: 

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT)
Other Documents: 

(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in Lucidoc at

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:12082$0.

Document ID 12082 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 3

1313

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:12082$0


Student Clinical Rotation

Disclaimer

PDF DISCLAIMER LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF was requested on 5/15/2024 and will be made available in the Lucidoc application
until midnight on the requested day. PDFs should not be used as official documentation. Contents of official documents are subject
to change without notice. Lucidoc makes no representation or warranty whatsoever regarding the completeness, accuracy, "up-to-
dateness", or adequacy of the information or materials contained herein. Please refer to Lucidoc for the most up to date information.

CONFIDENTIALITY LEGAL NOTICE: This PDF may contain confidential information and is intended solely for the addressee. The
information may also be legally privileged. This transmission is sent in trust, for the sole purpose of delivery to the intended
recipient. If you have received this transmission in error, any use, reproduction, or dissemination of this transmission is strictly
prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please immediately notify the sender and permanently delete this file.

Revision Insight

Document ID: 12083
Revision Number: 0
Owner: Brittney Slibsager, Director
Revision Official Date: No revision official date

Revision Note:
New policy.

Page 1

1414



DocID: 12083
Revision: 0
Status: In preparation
Department: Medical Staff Services
Manual(s):

Policy : Student Clinical Rotation

PURPOSE

To provide a framework for allied health/medical student clinical rotations through the San Benito Health Care District (SBHCD) affiliated clinics, Skilled
Nursing Facilities (SNF), and offsite locations and outline expectations for students and their preceptors.

POLICY

The applicant must be a student enrolled in an accredited program for the M.D., D.O. degree, Physician Assistant, Nurse Practitioner, Registered Nurse,
License Vocational Nurse, CNA, Medical Assisting, Radiology Technologist or Phlebotomy.

Each student must accompany their sponsoring provider, wear school issued student photo ID, wear scrubs or business attire, and be introduced to
every patient and hospital personnel as a student.

Students who are current employees of the District are not permitted to participate in a rotation in the department they are employed in.  Nursing students
may be an exception with the approval of their supervisor or instructor. 

Students cannot be an immediate relative to the preceptor.

PROCEDURE

1. School representative (instructor, advisor, dean, student or placement coordinator) contacts the Medical Staff office to initiate placement.

2. Student will complete the application for student rotation.

3. Application will be reviewed by Human Resources to determine if the student has ever been employed by SBHCD and had any personnel actions or
termination.

4. If it is established that the student has undergone human resources-related actions or termination, the department director/manager will engage in a
discussion to assess the student’s eligibility to participate in the student rotation.

5. The Medical Staff office confirms a current School Affiliation Agreement is in place between school and San Benito Health Care District. If Affiliation
Agreement is not in place, school will contact the administrative analyst to provide/request an agreement and the administrative analyst will send
agreement to District’s counsel for review.

6. The Medical Staff determines if placement opportunity exists after affiliation, agreement is confirmed and department manager/director is contacted.

7. The Medical Staff notifies school of successful placement or inability to meet request.

8. Student will complete the following required items for placement consideration:
a. Application for Student Rotation (Attachment A)

b. Confidentiality Agreement (Attachment B)

c. Employee Health clearance (Attachment C) refer to policy number 11401

d. Human Resources clearance

9. The application for Student Rotation will be reviewed and approved, or denied with a documented reason. The affiliated program and the student will be
notified with the final decision.

ATTACHMENTS

A. Application for Student Observation

B. Medical Staff Confidentiality

C. Sponsoring Physician & Student Agreement

D. Employee Health’s, Health Screening Policy-Students, Contract Workers and Licensed Independent Practitioners

Document ID 12083 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 2

1515

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:11401


Attachment: A

Document ID 12083 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 3

1616



Attachment: B

Document ID 12083 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 4

1717



Attachment: C

Document ID 12083 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 5

1818



Document ID 12083 Document Status In preparation
Department Medical Staff Services Department Director Slibsager, Brittney

Document Owner Slibsager, Brittney Next Review Date
Attachments: 

(REFERENCED BY THIS DOCUMENT) Health Screening- Students, Contract Workers and Licensed Independent Practitioners 

Other Documents: 
(WHICH REFERENCE THIS DOCUMENT)

Paper copies of this document may not be current and should not be relied on for official purposes. The current version is in Lucidoc at

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:12083$0.

Document ID 12083 Revision   0 Hazel Hawkins Memorial HospitalPage 6

1919

https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:11401
https://www.lucidoc.com/cgi/doc-gw.pl?ref=hhmh:12083$0


To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From: Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President, Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services 

Date: May 15, 2024 

Re: All Clinics – April 2024 

Rural Health and Specialty Clinics’ visit volumes 

• We are delighted to welcome back orthopedic surgeon Dr. Russell Dedini to our Orthopedic
Center. His exceptional care and patient-centered approach have been greatly missed by
both patients and staff. Dr. Dedini's return has been met with enthusiasm and he shares our
excitement to have him back.

• We are pleased to welcome back family medicine physician assistant Bruce Strickland, PA
to help bridge a primary care gap as we integrate new Advanced Practice Providers (APP)
graduates who are projected to begin in mid-to-late summer.

Clinic Location Total visits 

Orthopedic Specialty 390
Multi-Specialty 683

Sunset 905
Surgery & Primary Care 264

San Juan Bautista 382
1st Street 797
4th Street 1,143
Barragan  673

Total 5,237

20



1 

Mabie Southside/Northside Skilled Nursing Facility 
Board Report – MAY 2024 

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 

From: Dee Cross, RN, MLS, Interim Director of Nursing, Skilled Nursing Facility 

1. Census Statistics: April 2024
Southside 2024 Northside 2024 

Total Number of Admissions 13 Total Number of Admissions 6 
Number of Transfers from HHH 10 Number of Transfers from HHH 5 
Number of Transfers to HHH 3 Number of Transfers to HHH 2 
Number of Deaths 2 Number of Deaths 1 
Number of Discharges 10 Number of Discharges 2 
Total Discharges 12 Total Discharges 3 
Total Census Days 1202 Total Census Days 1,223 
Note: Transfers are included in the number of admissions and discharges. Deaths are included in the number of discharges. Total 
census excludes bed hold days. 

2. Total Admissions: April 2024
Southside From Payor Northside From Payor 

6 HHMH Medicare 3 HHH Medicare 
2 HHMH/Re-Admit Medicare 2 HHH CCA 
2 HHMH/Re-Admit CCA 1 HOME CCA 
1 CHOMP/Re-Admit Hospice 
2 SVM/Re-Admit Medicare 

Total:   13 Total:   

3. Total Discharges by Payor: April 2024
Southside 2024 Northside 2024 

Medicare 9 Medicare 0 
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0 
CCA 3 CCA 2 
Medical 0 Medical 0 
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0 
Hospice 0 Hospice 1 
Private (self-pay) 0 Private (self ay) 0 
Insurance 0 Insurance 0 
Total: 12 Total: 3 

21



2 

4. Total Patient Days by Payor: April 2024
Southside 2024 Northside 2024 

Medicare 186 Medicare 35 
Medicare MC 0 Medicare MC 0 
CCA 942 CCA 983 
Medical 30 Medical 120 
Medi-Cal MC 0 Medi-Cal MC 0 
Hospice 14 Hospice 46 
Private (self-pay) 30 Private (self-pay) 30 
Insurance 0 Insurance 0 
Bed Hold / LOA 15 Bed Hold / LOA 9 
Total: 1217 Total: 1223 
Average Daily Census 40.57 Average Daily Census 40.77 

22



San Benito Health Care District 
A Public Agency 

911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 637-5711, hazelhawkins.com 

To: San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 
From: Bernadette Enderez, Director of Diagnostic Services 
Date: May 2024 
Re: Laboratory and Diagnostic Imaging 

Updates: 
Laboratory 

1. Service/Outreach
- Supervisor scheduling check-ins with Providers for service feedback.

2. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Currently working with Nursing departments on a process improvement for blood transfusion

documentation.
- Preparation for chemistry analyzer replacement presentation

3. Laboratory Statistics

April 2024 YTD 

Total  Outpatient Volume 3850 15936 
Main Laboratory 1195 4748 
HHH Employee Covid Testing 9 32 
Mc Cray Lab 971 4290 
Sunnyslope Lab 383 1527 
SJB and 4th Street 40 184 
ER and ASC 1252 5155 

Total Inpatient Volume 310 914 

Diagnostic Imaging 
1. Service/Outreach

- New service evaluation for CT   low dose lung screening exam

2. Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement Activities
- Assessment of the current C-arm machine that is estimated to be 17 years old.

23



San Benito Health Care District 
A Public Agency 

911 Sunset Drive, Hollister, CA 95023, (831) 637-5711, hazelhawkins.com 

3. Diagnostic Imaging Statistics

April 2024 YTD 

Radiology 1803 7060 
Mammography 751 2906 
CT 905 3555 
MRI 178 627 
Echocardiography 120 466 
Ultrasound 811 3063 

24



TO:   San Benito Health Care District Board of Directors 
FROM:  Liz Sparling, Foundation Director 
DATE:  May 2024 
RE:  Foundation Report 

The Hazel Hawkins Hospital Foundation Board of Trustees met on May 9 at Noon the in the Horizon 
Room.    

Financial Report       April 

1. Income  $   14,214.49 
2. Expenses  $     4,983.32 
3. New Donors       1     
4. Total Donations       171 

Allocations 

 $5,700 for SCIFIT PRO 1000 Upper Body Exerciser for Physical Therapy

 $11,399.68 available spendable interest in our Community Foundation Endowment Account

for Scholarships

 $21,250 for Scholarships for students in the medical field

Directors Report 

 Our All for 1 Employee Giving Campaign ran the month of April.  We had 72 participants pledging

$57, 064.  Thank you to all the employees who participated.

 Ann Marie Barragan, Irene Davis and I were invited to meet with the Chief Empowerment Officer

from SBEV, the non-profit organization that Insight has in Flint Michigan.  They gave us a

presentation on their after school program.

 Our taxes are almost complete have been completed and submitted.

 I am currently on a Committee that is trying to get a Leadership Program back into San Benito

County.  We are currently operating under the Community Foundation as the San Benito County

Leadership Institute.  The application for the fall class is now available.  If you know anyone who

would be interested, please let me know and I can get them more information.

Dinner Dance Report: 

 We are excited about our in person Dinner Dance this year on November 2nd at the Paicines

Ranch.  Please mark your calendars!

Scholarship Committee: 
 The Committee selected the recipients for our Foundation Scholarships for students perusing

their career in the medical field.  We had 14 applications submitted and allocated $21,250 to the

awardees.  Out of the 14 recipients, seven of them are employees at HHH!

 The recipients are:  Serena Adame, Adriana Arroyo, Lacey Bourdet, Angela Costales, Freida

Figueroa, Caitlin Guerrero, Alyssa Guth, Zara Hassan, Anahi Martinez-Nunez, Ana (Annie) Nunez,

Griselda Reynoso, Amber Stroud, Rosie Valencia and Levana Zamora.   Also, Mishel Thomas, HHH

Clinic Operations Manager, Rural Health Clinics & Specialty Offices received a scholarship from

the Foundation to attend the San Benito County Leadership Institue that will begin this fall.

25



Board of Director’s Report May 2024 

Marketing/Public Relations 

MARKETING 

 Social Media Posts

26



Public: 

Working with Marcus Young from townKRYER PR agency on proactive PR.  

 Press Releases

- HHMH Achieves Prestigious Baby Friendly Designation

VIDEO’S POSTED ON SOCIAL MEDIA 

 Welcome Back Dr. Dedini

 Volunteer Appreciation Brunch

 Participated in a health fair at Twin Oaks Active Adult Community

 Served on SBC Chamber Man/Woman of the Year Selection Committee as past recipient

 Participating on SBC Leadership Program Alumni Committee.

COMMUNITY 

MEDIA 

Board of Director’s Report May 2024 - page 2 

Marketing/Public Relations 

Employees: 

 Recognition Weeks for May:

  6 - 12 Nurses Week 

12 - 18 Hospital Week 

12 - 18 Skilled Nursing Care Week 

 Coordinated events for Hospital/Nurses/Skilled Nursing Weeks

 Nurse Week Breakfast

 Free meals for employees

 Free Scones and Coffee

 Free Ice Cream Bars/ Waffles for Offsite locations/ Brownie Trays for night shift

 BBQ for employees/Pizza for night shft

 Casual for a  Cause Friday Blue Jeans/Food Truck Friday

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 

27



PMO Project Summary Report 

Date: 5.13.24 

Summary of current and completed projects managed by the Project Management Office (PMO). 
This is a high-level overview of the PMO's activity, highlighting key initiatives and their outcomes. 

Current Projects 

Project Name Project 
Description Start Date Target Completion 

Date Current Status Key Deliverables 

Access 
eForms/Passport 

Access Passport is a 
web-based forms 
solution that 
provides access to 
the functional 
elements you need 
to 
remove all paper 
from your forms 
processes—making 
them completely 
electronic from start 
to finish. 

4/29/24 11/30/24 Form design has 
begun 

New registration 
forms and new 
hardware install 

BD Anti Diversion 
& Pyxis Install 

Install larger Pyxis 
in ICU. Current 
one will go to OB 
Surg. Install new in 
PACU and outside 
OR. Returning 
Anesthesia units. 
Implement 
pharmacy 
diversion software 
across all. 

2/9/24 TBD 

Meeting 
scheduled for 
5.21.24. Data 
extracts and 
mapping tables 
are being 
worked on 

• Install add’l 
units and
move units

• Install
diversion 
software 
on units 

• Install data
drops and
electrical

EHR Project Identify and demo 
EHR systems 2/14/24 TBD 

2nd phase 
initiated for 
Expanse – ROI 
data being 
captured 

ROI data 
compiled by 
Finance 

Insight Due 
Diligence 

Coordinate 
gathering of data 
and put in data 
room 

3/19/24 5/31/24 

Data room 
established and 
data is being 
populated to it 

Collect data and 
populate new 
data room 

28



 
 

MD Staff 

MD-Staff is a 
feature rich 
enterprise level 
credentialing 
system that is 
powerful, user 
friendly, and 
intuitive. 

3/18/24 20-30 Weeks 
Waiting on 
current vendor 
for data export 

• Provide 
Source 
Data to 
vendor 

• Provide 
Merge 
Documents 
and priv 
forms 

• Training 
• Add users 

Promoting 
Interoperability 

Meet measures 
and successfully 
attest to CMS 
regulations 

1/5/24 
Q4 – calendar 
year (Oct-Nov-
Dec) 

In process-
waiting on Iatric 
vendor for 
information 

Attest and report 
out successful 
completion of 
identified 
measures 

Completed Projects – FYE 6.30.24 

Project Name Project Description Start Date Completion 
Date 

Key 
Achievements Lessons Learned 

Insight 
Health Visit 

Coordinate 
Insight 
community visit 

2/22/24 3/14/24 

Introductions, 
data sharing, 
community 
involvement 

Over-
communicate 

Midas Risk 
Pharmacy 

Edit worklists to 
change 
direction of 
med errors to 
go to Pharm 
first to ensure 
MERP 
regulatory 
information is 
entered  

4/1/24 4/4/24 Regulatory 
compliance 

Tiffany is 
awesome! (I kind 
of already knew 
this.) She learned 
a process from a 
10 min training 
session 

29



 
 

Statit 

Schedule, 
coordinate 
and attend 
STATIT training 
for new Med 
staff director 

2/26/24 2/28/24 

Med staff 
department 
trained on 
software for 
OPPE 

 

Telephone 
Answering 
Service 

Research and 
provide 
options to 
Mishel of other 
answering 
services 

3/27/24 4/8/24 

Options 
provided to 
management 
that afforded 
them 
information to 
make an 
informed 
decision 

 

TMS 

Add district 
assets to the 
Eng WO system 
to allow 
coordinating 
and Prev Maint 
scheduling 

12/1/23 3/4/24 

Entering of 
this data 
increases 
reporting 
capabilities 
and tracking 
of assets 

 

MM Charge 
master 

Ensure charge 
codes for RAD 
are entered 
and general 
cleanup of MM 
charge master 

4/5/24 TBD Completed 
Initial entry of 
data needs to be 
clean 

 

Metrics and Reporting 

Surveys are being sent out to the project owners upon close of their project.  We will utilize this 
feedback to improve our project management processes. 

30



 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

CREDENTIALS REPORT 
 May 15, 2024 

 
NEW APPOINTMENTS  

PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE STATUS 
REQUEST 

TERM 

    
 
REAPPOINTMENTS  

PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE STATUS TERM 

Tracy Chen, DO  Radiology/Radiology Active 06/01/2024-05/31/2026 
Richard Rupp, MD Radiology/Radiology Active 06/01/2024-05/31/2026 
Peter Gerbino, MD Surgery/Orthopedic Surgery Affiliate 06/01/2024-05/31/2026 
Jullian Nguyen, MD Medicine/Family Medicine Active 06/01/2024-05/31/2026 
Hue Nguyen- Ngo, MD Perinatal/Pediatrics Active 06/01/2024-05/31/2026 
Olivia Tran, PA Medicine/Clinic Medicine AHP 06/01/2024-05/31/2026 
Matthew Twichell, CRNA Surgery/CRNA AHP 06/01/2024-05/31/2026 
 
 
RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS 

PRACTITIONER DEPT/SERVICE CURRENT 
STATUS 

COMMENT 

    
    
 

31



    
1 

 
 

HAZEL HAWKINS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
APPLICATION FOR CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 

 
CLINIC PSYCHOLOGIST 

 
 
Name of Applicant:________________________________________________________________  
 
In order to be eligible to request clinical privileges for both initial appointment and reappointment,  
a practitioner must meet the following minimum threshold criteria: 
 

Minimum Requirements  
 

 Education: Completion of a doctorate degree (Ph.D, Psy.D, or EDD) from a regional accredited 
institution  
 
 License: Current licensure by the California Board of Psychology.  
 
 Require Clinical Experience: The applicant for initial appointment or reappointment must be 
able to demonstrate that he/she has satisfactorily performed clinical services in the core privileges in an 
outpatient or inpatient setting to at least 30 patient in the past 24 months. For applicants requesting 
Clinic Child and Adolescent Psychologist Core Privileges, the applicant for initial appointment or 
reappointment must be able to demonstrate that he/she has satisfactorily performed clinical services in 
the core privileges in an outpatient or inpatient setting to at least 30 patient in the past 24 months, 
along with provide proof of coursework and training focused on a child and adolescent psychology, 
including developmental psychology, child psychology, and therapeutic interventions for children and 
adolescents.  

 
If the applicant meets the above criteria, he/she may request privileges as specified below. 
 
I hereby request privileges as follows: 
 

 
Clinic General Psychologist Core Privileges 

 
Privileges include but not limited to the ability to diagnose, assess, and treat mental health and behavioral conditions. 
Conduct comprehensive psychological assessments, including clinical interviews, behavioral assessments, and 
psychometric testing. Perform risk assessments for conditions such as suicidality, homicidality, and other high-risk 
behaviors. Provide individual, group, and family therapy, conduct psychological testing and evaluations, and develop 
treatment plans.  
 
 
                                                                      ____Requested                ____Approved 
 

32



    
2 

 
 
 

 
Clinic Child and Adolescent Psychologist Core Privileges 

 
Privileges include the ability to conduct developmentally appropriate psychological assessments for children and 
adolescents, including play therapy techniques, behavioral observations, and standardized testing. Diagnose mental health 
and developmental disorders specific to children and adolescents, such as ADHD, autism spectrum disorders, learning 
disabilities, and conduct disorders. Work closely with parents, guardians, and family members to support the child’s 
mental health and developmental progress. Address acute psychological crises in children and adolescents, such as 
severe emotional distress, self-harm, and trauma.  
 
                                                                      ____Requested                ____Approved 
 
 

 
 
 
I certify that I have had the necessary training and experience to perform the procedures I have 
requested. 
 
 
Name of Applicant:________________________________________ Date:____________________ 
 
Signature of Applicant:______________________________________________________________ 
 

33



    
3 

 
APPROVALS: 
All privileges delineated have been individually considered and have been recommended based 
upon the physician's specialty, licensure, specific training, experience, health status, current 
competence and peer recommendations. 
 
Applicant may perform privileges as indicated. 
 
Exceptions/Limitations:   None    Specify below 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________ ____________________ 
Medical Director        Date 
 
 
 

34



 
 

 

 

 
CEO Report 
May 2024 

Financial Emergency Update 
• Help the County make arrangements to speak to our Foundation Board, Physicians and Employees. 
• Continue to meet with Ad Hoc Committee to work through the process of a transaction. 

 
CEO Activities 

• Presented a hospital update at the Intergovernmental meeting.  
• Attended the last Advisory Board meeting for Pathways at the High School.  The Healthcare pathway 

will be kicking off in the fall and we will be working with the school to have students shadow, intern, 
and doing site visits.  

• Continue to work with CHA and DHLF on legislation for reimbursement and seismic issues.  
• DHLF has asked me to sit on a CEO panel at their CEO/CFO meeting in Sacramento where we will be 

discussing challenges in healthcare.  
• We celebrated Hospital week May 13-17. There were activities every day showing appreciation to all 

staff on every shift. A special shout out to Frankie Gallagher for all her work on coordinating the week. 
 
HR 

• The overall turnover rate for the hospital has been consistent and is currently slightly over 5% for the 
year.  

 
Physician Services 

• Our team continues to work with 4 agencies to recruit physicians focusing on GI, Endocrine, Psychiatry, 
and primary care.  

• Orthopedics is set to have a full complement of physicians for that office late summer.  
• With the departure of Dr. Malik, the team is creatively working on a replacement and will be increasing 

services to our community. We have already identified a full-time psychiatrist, full-time Mental Health 
Nurse Practitioner and a part-time psychologist who are undergoing medical staff credentialing. We  
have also identified a tele-health platform who will provide behavioral health services. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

35



DEPARTMENTAL  METRICS January February March April YTD

# Employees 667 676 679 681 676

#  New Hires 15 17 10 10 52

# Terminations 7 10 10 9 36

Overall Turnover 1.0% 1.5% 1.5% 1.3% 5.3%

Nursing Turnover 0.78% 1.53% 2.3% 1.6% 6.2%

Terms By Union January February March April
The California Nurses Association (CNA)

1 2 3 2 8
National Union of Healthcare Workers (NUHW)

4 7 7 4 22
California License Vocational Nurses (CLVN)

0 0 0 2 2
Engineers and Scientists of California (ESC)

0 0 0 0 0
Non-Union

2 1 0 1 4

Terms By Reason (V=Voluntary & IV= Involuntary) January February March April

Personal (V) 2 3 2 3 10

Retirement (V) 4 2 1 0 7

Schedule (V) 1 0 1 0 2

Job Abandonment (V) 0 2 0 0 2

No Reason Given (V) 0 2 2 4 8

Relocating (V) 0 0 1 0 1

No Show (V) 0 0 0 1 1

Performance (IV) 1 1 3 1 6

HUMAN RESOURCES DASHBOARD 2024

3636



Interim Chief Nursing Officer Report 

May 2024 

Patient Care Services 

• Nurses Week Celebration 
• Baby Friendly Designation 
• Quality Director 
• Infection Prevention Director 
• Initial meeting of Employee Activities Committee 

Quality, Regulatory, & Utilization Management 

• Continue Joint Commission survey preparation 
• Restructured Multi-Disciplinary Rounds with new Case Manager 
• Ongoing review and education for improved Electronic Medical Record documentation 

by all staff  
• CDI, charge capture, and Business Continuity projects with INNOVA 
• New Emergency Management/Security Director starting mid-June 

 

 

 

37



 
 
 
San Benito Health Care District 
Finance Committee Minutes 
May 16, 2024 - 4:30pm 
 
Present: Jeri Hernandez, Board President  

Josie Sanchez, Board Secretary 
Mary Casillas, Chief Executive Officer 

                             Mark Robinson, Chief Financial Officer 
  Karen Descent, Interim Chief Nursing Officer 
  Amy Breen-Lema, Vice President Clinic, Ambulatory & Physician Services 
  Bernadette Enderez, Director of Diagnostic Services, Clinical Laboratory 
  William Pollard, Plant Operations Manager 
 Sandra DiLaura, Controller    
 
Public: G.W. Devon Pack, Robert Bernosky   
                                          
 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting of the Finance Committee was called to order at 4:30pm. 

 
2. REVIEW FINANCIAL UPDATES  

    A. April 2024 Financial Statements  
For the month ending April 30, 2024, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $1,568,041 
compared to a budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $106,208.  The District exceeded its budget for 
the month by $1,461,833. 

 
YTD as of April 30, 2024, the District’s Net Surplus (Loss) is $11,915,635 compared to a 
budgeted Surplus (Loss) of $655,792.  The District is exceeding its budget YTD by 
$11,259,843. 

 
It is estimated that the annual cost of returning to the pre-bankruptcy benefits plan would 
be approximately $7 million for the first year.   

 
The District accrued revenue for the AB113 NDPH IGTs for SFY 20222/23 “Final” and 
SFY 2023/24 “Interim” payments of $140,624 and $144,824 respectively.       

 
Acute discharges were 158 for the month, under budget by 30 discharges or 16%.  The 
ADC was 12.3 compared to a budget of 18.39.  The ALOS was 2.34.  The acute I/P gross 
revenue was under budget by $2.33 while O/P services gross revenue was $4.6 million or 
19% over budget.  ER I/P visits were 126 and ER O/P visits were over budget by 512 
visits or 30%.  The RHCs & Specialty Clinics treated 4,164 (includes 673 visits at the 
Diabetes Clinic) and 1,073 visits respectively.      

 
Other Operating revenue was under budget by $44,532 due mainly to lower than 
budgeted physician collections.                                  

 

38



Operating Expenses were over budget by $168,337 due mainly to positive variances in:  
Employee Benefits of $159,961, Professional Fees of $16,655 and Supplies of $73,283 
being offset with higher than budgeted expenses in Registry of $293,002 and Purchase 
Service of $217,832.                

 
Non-operating Revenue exceeded budget by $5,277 due mainly to higher than budgeted 
donations.   

 
The SNFs ADC was 80.53 for the month.  The Net Surplus (Loss) is $205,607 compared 
to a budget of $207,113.  YTD, the Net Surplus (Loss) is $3,335,367, exceeding its 
budget by $1,130,866.   

 
B.  March 2024 Finance Dashboard 
The Finance Dashboard and Cash Flow Statement were reviewed by the Committee.  
 
C.  Other Financial Updates 
Other items noted included: 

• Supplemental Payment Program in detail and when to expect reimbursements. 
• Distressed Hospital Loan Program Award Letter Amendment term 72 months (no 

payments 18 months), 0% fixed interest, $185,185.19/mth.  
 
 

3. BOARD RESOLUTION #2024-01. 
A. Distressed Hospital Loan Program – CHFFA - The resolution would allow for submission of 

the loan application and give the CEO and CFO of the District authorization to execute 
the Loan Agreement Promissory Note. Finance Committee recommends this resolution 
for Board approval. 
 

 
4. CONSIDER RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD APPROVAL OF LABORATORY CHEMISTRY ANALYZER 

PROJECT. 
Purchase of two Abbott Alinity analyzers with its management system for a total capital amount 
of $651,000.00. Approval of a 7 year service contract totaling $471,379.86 (67,339.98/yr) and 
architectural and engineering services of TreanorHL for a total of $288,670.00. This will take 
place in 2 phases expected completion in February 2025. The Finance Committee recommends 
this agreement for the Board approval of $1,105,000. 

 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
            There being no further business, the Committee was adjourned at 5:25 pm. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Sandra DiLaura 
Controller 

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83


	IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE
	AGENDA
	ADP112A.tmp
	SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS  MAY 23, 2024
	CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS
	[  ] CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
	[ X ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION
	[ X ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
	[  ] LIABILITY CLAIMS
	[  ] THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
	[X] CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
	[  ] CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
	[  ] REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET
	[  ] HEARINGS/REPORTS
	[  ] CHARGE OR COMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED

	SBHCD Board Meeting Packet 05.23.24.pdf
	Closed Session Agenda 5.23.24 (Final).pdf
	SAN BENITO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS  MAY 23, 2024
	CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS
	[  ] CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
	[ X ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION
	[ X ] CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
	[  ] LIABILITY CLAIMS
	[  ] THREAT TO PUBLIC SERVICES OR FACILITIES
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
	[  ] PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
	[X] CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
	[  ] CASE REVIEW/PLANNING
	[  ] REPORT INVOLVING TRADE SECRET
	[  ] HEARINGS/REPORTS
	[  ] CHARGE OR COMPLAINT INVOLVING INFORMATION PROTECTED

	SBHCD Board Meeting Packet 05.23.24.pdf
	05.23.24 SBHCD Board Meeting AGENDA (Final).pdf
	IN PERSON AND BY VIDEO CONFERENCE
	AGENDA

	Binder1.pdf
	BOD Minutes 04.25.24 (Draft 3)
	10396 - Fall Prevention
	12082 - Student Shadowing
	12083 - Student Clinical Rotation
	April 2024 Board report (ABL edits)
	May 2024 - SNF Board Report - LLG
	Board Report_May 2024
	Marketing Report - May 2024.pub
	05.2024 Foundation Board Report
	PMO Project Summary Report 5.13.24
	5 May
	NEW APPOINTMENTS
	REAPPOINTMENTS
	RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS

	Clinic Psychologist
	CLINIC PSYCHOLOGIST
	Clinic General Psychologist Core Privileges
	Clinic Child and Adolescent Psychologist Core Privileges

	CEO Board Report 5.2024(ABL edits)
	Turnover Spreadsheet- Jan-April
	Interim Chief Nursing Officer Report - May 2024






